AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

MONROE COUNTY EDUCATION ASSOCIATION DUNDEE AND THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF DUNDEE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

September 1, 2018 – June 30, 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Association Agreement		2
Article I	Recognition	2
Article II	Board's Rights	3
Article III	Professional Compensation	4-5
Article IV	Teaching Hours	5-7
Article V	Teaching Loads and Assignments	7
Article VI	Teaching Conditions	7-9
Article VII	Vacancies and Promotions	9
Article VIII	Transfers	9
Article IX	Illness or Disability	.9-11
Article X	Leaves of Absence1	2-15
Article XI	Protection of Teachers1	
Article XII	Negotiation Procedures	
Article XIII	Grievance Procedure1	
Article XIV	Continuity of Operations	
Article XV	Miscellaneous Provisions	
Letter of Intent		21
Article XVI	Staffing	22
Article XVII	School Calendar	23
Schedule A, Item la	Salary Scale	24
Schedule A, Item 1b	Calculating pay for those who teach more than full-time	25
Schedule A, Item lc	Teaching Part-time	25
Schedule A, Item 1d	Insurance	26
Schedule A, Item I e	Longevity Pay	27
Schedule A, Item 1f	Retirement	27
Schedule A, Item lg	Salary Reduction Plan	27
Schedule A, Item lh	Mileage	27
Schedule A, Item 2 Part A	Extra Duty Assignments Pay	28
Schedule A, Item 2 Part B	Extra Duty Coaching Assignment Pay	29
Schedule A, Item 3	Meetings during school hrs/Noon Supervision/Supplementary Contrac	t 29
Schedule A, Item 3 Part B	DCAT, ETTLC, Math MAC, Science MAC2	9-31
Schedule A, Item 4	Compensation for teachers used substitutes	
Schedule A, Item 5	Credit for prior teaching experience	
Schedule A, Item 6	In-service Training Program	
Schedule A, Item 7	Dundee Community Schools Insurance Plan Description	
Duration of Agreement	Signature page	37

ASSOCIATION AGREEMENT

This agreement entered into the 12th day of March 2018, by and between the Board of Education of the Dundee Community School district hereinafter called the "Board," and the Monroe County Education Association hereinafter called the "Association," pursuant to Act 379 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1965. This contract shall terminate at 11:59 p.m. on the 30^{th of} June 2021.

WHEREAS,

The Board and the Association recognize and declare that providing quality education for children of Dundee is their mutual aim; and

WHEREAS,

The quality of education depends primarily upon the quality of the teaching service and the cooperation between teachers and administrators; and

WHEREAS,

Members of the teaching profession and the Board of Education will continue, through cooperation and communication, to improve the quality of education for the children of Dundee; and

WHEREAS,

The Board has a statutory' obligation, pursuant to the Public Employment Relations Act, Act 379 of the Michigan Public Acts of 1965, to bargain with the Association as the representative of its teaching personnel with respect to hours, wages, terms, and conditions of employment; and

WHEREAS,

The parties have reached certain understandings, which they desire to confirm in this agreement, in consideration of the following mutual covenants; it is hereby agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I

Recognition

The Board recognizes the Association as the exclusive legal bargaining representative for all fulltime and regularly employed part-time teaching personnel under contract with the Board which are certified by the Department of Education, State of Michigan, including librarians, speech therapists, counselors, and reading consultants but excluding administrators, such as the superintendent, principals, assistant principals, athletic and adult education directors, substitute teachers, school nurse, per diem employees, such as adult education teachers, and all others.

The term "regularly employed part-time teacher" shall mean a teacher employed for two hours or more per day for a semester.

The term "substitute" as used herein shall mean those teachers that are employed on a sporadic basis as a replacement for other full-time or regularly employed part-time teachers.

ARTICLE II Board's Rights

It is expressly agreed that all rights, which ordinarily vest in and have been exercised by the Board, except those, which are expressly relinquished herein by the Board, shall continue to vest exclusively in and be exercised exclusively by the Board. Such rights shall include, by way of illustration and not by way of limitation, the right to:

- 1. The executive management and administration of the school system and its properties, facilities, equipment, and the professional activities of its employees related to employment in the school district.
- 2. Hire all employees and, subject to the provisions of this contract and of law, to determine their qualifications and the conditions for their continued employment, to assign, schedule, promote, demote, transfer, discipline, suspend, lay-off, and dismiss all such employees; and to determine the duties and responsibilities of all such employees.
- 3. Establish levels and courses of instruction, including special programs and to provide for athletic, recreational, and social events for students as deemed necessary or advisable by the Board.
- 4. Decide upon the means and methods of instruction, the selection of textbooks and other teaching materials and the use of teaching aids.
- 5. Determine the services, supplies, and equipment necessary to continue its operation and to determine all methods and means of distributing, disseminating and/or selling its services, methods, schedules, and standards of operation; the means, methods, and processes of carrying on the work including automation or contracting thereof or changes therein and the institution of new and/or improved methods or changes therein.
- 6. Adopt rules and regulations.
- 7. Determine the number and locations or relocation of its facilities, including the establishment or relocations of new school buildings, departments, divisions or subdivisions thereof and the relocation or closing of offices, departments, divisions or subdivisions, buildings or other facilities thereof.
- 8. Determine the size of the management organization, its functions, authority, amount of supervision and table of organization, provided that the Board shall not abridge any rights from employees as specifically provided in this Agreement.
- 9. Determine the policy affecting the selection of employees, providing that such selection shall be based upon lawful criteria

ARTICLE III Professional Compensation

- A. The salaries of teachers covered by this Agreement are set forth in Schedule A, Item Ia, which is attached.
- B. If negotiations under Article X IV are conducted during the school day by mutual consent of both parties, a teacher engaged in behalf of the Association shall be released from regular duties without loss of salary. The Association will pay the total cost of substitutes when the regular classroom teacher is released from duty without loss of salary.
- C. The Board retains the right to not re-employ teachers in extra-service assignments and the right to discharge teachers from their extra-service assignments during the term of the assignments. Extra-service duties are those duties, which are covered on a separate schedule set forth in Schedule A, Item 2. In the event the Board of Education decides not to assign a teacher from within the bargaining unit to an extra-service duty, the Board reserves the right to go outside the bargaining unit to fill the positions.
- **D.** All remunerations beyond the basic salary schedule are set forth in Schedule A, Items 1b, lc, Id, le, If, lg, lh, II Part A, II Part B, III, IV, V, and VI.
- E. The Association shall not conduct internal business during school hours.
- F. Release time in the amount of eight (8) hours per school month shall be made available to elected union officers for Association business or conferences without loss of pay. Notification for release time shall be made at least forty-eight (48) hour in advance. This time may accumulate to 40 hours, but shall not be accumulative from year to year (i.e. each school year begins with eight [8] hours). No more than two persons at one time shall be absent for the purpose of Association business. The Association shall pay the total current cost of the substitute required under the provisions of this paragraph.
 - It is understood and agreed that the Association shall, at the time of requesting Association days, state the purpose and function for which the days are to be used incorporating therein the name of the conference or Association business and its location. This is in accordance with past practice of the Association in requesting these days.
 - 2. It is further understood that the administration shall have the power to refuse to grant days for Association business where requests are made to participate in activities which are directly involved in public exposure to a strike including picketing by public school teachers at other districts within the State of Michigan contrary to the intent and purpose of Article XVI (No Strike Clause).
 - 3. It is further understood that negotiations seminars are not objectionable to the Association or to the administration so long as the seminars are within the precepts of the Public Employees Relations Act, it being understood that attempts to legislatively change P.E.R.A. are permissible. Further, it is understood that the administration shall not have the

right to impose its judgment as to the conduct of the delegates selected by the Association to attend any conference that is approved by the administration.

- G. Teachers may elect to receive their salaries in one of the following methods:
 - 1. Salary spread over twenty (22) equal pays, payable during the school year.
 - 2. Salary spread over twenty-six (26) equal pays, payable over twelve (12) month period.
 - 3. Pending authorization from each participant, salary shall be paid by direct deposit to an account of the teacher's choice.

ARTICLE IV

Teaching Hours

A. Teachers' workday is determined to be 20 minutes before the opening of the pupils' regular day and 20 minutes after the pupils' regular day. The Board shall have the right to adjust the school day and work day for the purpose of satisfying the requirements of laws and regulations pertaining to student instruction and receipt of full state aid. The school day is scheduled as follows:

Middle School & High School:							
Full Day 8:00A.M 2:50P.M.							
Half Day A.M.	8:00A.M 1 1:15A.M.						
Half Day P.M.	12:00P.M 2:50P.M.						
Elementary School							
Full Day	7:50 A.M2:55P.M.						
•							
Half Day A.M.	7:50A.M. – 11:10 A.M.						

Half Day P.M. 11:55A.M. -2:55P.M.

With the understanding P.M. kindergarten clock hours' requirements may necessitate time allocation changes.

- B. Teachers at assigned place of duty no later than 15 minutes before the opening of the pupils' regular school day. After the opening of the regular school day, classrooms shall be opened and supervised by the teacher assigned to said room prior to the start of the scheduled class period.
- C. Teachers may leave school 20 minutes after school is dismissed and immediately after the buses leave on the last day of the school week except when school is dismissed in advance of the normal teaching day. On days when school is dismissed in advance of the normal teaching day, teachers desiring to leave when buses leave shall request permission from the building principal. Reasonable requests shall be granted unless professional duties are required for the good of the system. All in-service days, whether partial in-service days or full in-service days, will end at the normal student dismissal time.

D. Elementary teachers (grades Y'5s-4) shall be entitled to a duty-free, uninterrupted lunch period of not less than forty-five minutes per day unless they volunteer for noon supervision services paid at the contracted rate per year.

Elementary and specials teachers (grades Y'5s4) will have a total preparation time provided at a minimum of 240 minutes per full school week, to be spread out over the course of the week. When teachers are called for a meeting during planning time by the administration that lasts more than 15 minutes in length, more than fifteen (15) times during any given school year, the teacher shall be given additional compensation of twenty-five dollars (\$25) for each subsequent meeting. It is further understood that when multiple IEP meetings can be scheduled on the same day, a floating substitute will be utilized to release the primary classroom teacher to attend these meetings; released time shall not count toward the fifteen meetings addressed above. The exception to this language shall be the special education teacher, who by nature of their position is required to attend such meetings. Specials may include: Art, PE, Music, Computers, Library, etc. Half-day schedules will be rotated so that the same specials are not missed.

It is understood that deviations in the above total preparation time may occur when specialized teachers are absent and substitutes are unavailable. These programs may be removed due to severe budgetary considerations or occasional calendar modifications (i.e. half days, special programs, field trips, inclement weather days). Should a special be eliminated due to budgetary restraints, the Administration agrees to meet with the Association Leadership to come up with a plan to meet the minimum required instructional minutes and hours. If agreement cannot be reached between the Administration and Association leadership when a special is eliminated due to budgetary restraints, it will be replaced with a once a week thirty (30) minute recess. All recesses are duty free.

Elementary teachers may also use unassigned recess and lunch period time for preparation periods.

Middle school teachers (grades 5-8) with a thirty (30) minute, duty-free, uninterrupted lunch period shall have one (l) assigned preparation period daily. Middle school teachers may use the time when their classes are scheduled for art, music, physical education, and instruction from specialized teacher for preparation periods. The time limit for duty free, uninterrupted lunch period does not apply to teachers who volunteer for noon supervision services paid at the contracted rate per year. When teachers are called for a meeting during planning time by administration that lasts more than 15 minutes in length, more than fifteen (15) times during any given school year, the teacher shall be given additional compensation of twenty-five dollars (\$25) for each subsequent meeting. It is further understood that when multiple IEP can be scheduled on the same day, a floating substitute will be utilized to release the primary classroom teacher to attend these meetings; released time shall not count toward the fifteen meetings addressed above. The exception to this language shall be the special education teacher, who by nature of their position is required to attend such meetings.

High school teachers grades (9-12) and Alternative High School teachers shall be entitled to a duty free, uninterrupted lunch period of not less than thirty (30) minutes per day unless they volunteer for noon supervision services paid at the contracted rate per year. High school teachers (grades 9-12) and Alternative High School teachers shall have one (l) assigned preparation period (equal to one class period) daily. When teachers are called for a meeting during planning time by the administration that lasts more than 15 minutes in length, more than fifteen (15) times during any given school year, the teacher shall be given additional compensation of twenty-five dollars (\$25) for each subsequent meeting. It is further understood that when multiple IEP can be scheduled on the same day, a floating substitute will be utilized to release the primary classroom teacher to attend these meetings; released time shall not count toward the fifteen meetings addressed above. The exception to this language shall be the special education teacher, who by nature of their position is required to attend such meetings.

- E. Hours of Young Fives and Kindergarten teachers shall be fixed by the principal at the beginning of each semester, but shall be in no event longer than the foregoing.
- F. A teacher shall not leave his/her class unattended at any time except in emergency situations.
- G. Attendance at professional staff meetings is required of all teachers unless prior approval of absence from the principal is obtained. Such meetings shall not aggregate more than twenty (20) hours per year. A professional staff meeting is a mandatory meeting of the entire building or the entire district teaching staff.

Attendance at the annual open house is required of all teachers. Staff attendance at an evening in-service of up to two hours may be substituted for the open house at the discretion of the administration. Three hours of the initial days of professional development will be designated to complete the safe schools training.

ARTICLE V Teaching Loads and Assignments

- A. Our mission is education and therefore the Association agrees to encourage staff attendance at the annual graduation exercises.
- B. Lead teachers are defined as teachers who may have administrative duties. Lead Teachers Will:
 - l. Teach at least fifty percent (50%) of a full day.
 - 2. Seniority will accrue and be prorated based on the number of classes taught in a full day.
 - 3. Fringe benefits will be prorated based on the number of classes taught in a full day according to the provisions of the Dundee Education Association Master Agreement.
 - 4. Longevity will accrue according to continuous length of employment at Dundee Community Schools and will be prorated according to the full-time equivalent.
 - 5. Prep time will be prorated and based on the number of classes taught in a full day according to the provisions of the Dundee Education Association Master Agreement.
 - 6. No evaluate, discipline, or oversee other teachers (Dundee Education Association members).
 - 7. Work the schedule defined by the Dundee Education Association Master Agreement with regard to teaching hours and school calendar.

ARTICLE VI Teaching Conditions

A. Because pupil-teacher ratio is an important aspect of an effective educational program, the parties agree that class size should be lowered wherever possible. The class sizes, as hereinafter specified, shall become effective as soon as possible but not later than, the fourth Friday count from the beginning of each school year of this contract in order to allow for administrative adjustments because of unforeseen contingencies. Second semester class sizes shall become effective as soon as possible, but not later than the fourth Friday of the second semester.

Y5's/Kindergarten 27 students 1st - 6th 28 students 7th - 12th 32 students

Class_Size

In the event of an overload, the teacher or teachers affected, or to be affected thereby may request a conference in writing to be held not less than 10 days from said request with the

Superintendent, building principal, and Association representative, at which time an adjustment shall be discussed.

Teachers assigned classes which exceed these maximum enrollments (after drop/add period of five [5] days) shall receive in the secondary \$3.00 per pupil per class and \$10.00 per pupil per day in the elementary grades for those teachers who have students for a full day; for those teachers who have students less than a full day, the administration shall pro-rate the \$8.00 for actual time a teacher spends with the students. It is expressly understood that overage pay is based on enrollment, not on actual attendance. It is also expressly understood that classes, which have traditionally been taught in large groups, such as, but not necessarily limited to, pool, and music need not conform to the above enrollments. Size of industrial vocational classes, drafting, home economics, and other specialized classes shall be determined by the nature of the program and special equipment available. Once the Physical Education class sizes reach forty (40) students, the District will offer an instructional assistant, of the opposite sex, to assist the Physical Education Teacher.

The administration will oversee the educational delivery plan for any student who does not qualify for special education services, but who falls within the Section 504 guidelines as mandated by the State of Michigan.

The administration will make every effort to assign special education students in such a way that there is equal distribution of special students in various sections, grade levels and buildings, which are consistent with the student's IEP. Additionally, the classroom teacher assigned a mainstreamed special needs student which requires an inordinate amount of attention or which student chronically disrupts the education of the rest of the class shall be entitled to a conference with the building principal, the special education teacher, and the special education supervisor to explore appropriate assistance to either the student and/or the teacher mainstreaming the student. It is understood that changing of placement or the educational plan shall be subject to special education laws and procedures, but the administration pledges appropriate support of the classroom teacher in coping with the needs of the special needs student.

- B. Each building level will be provided with a workroom(s) with a working microwave, refrigerator, copy machine, and air conditioner.
- C. Each teacher bears the primary responsibility for maintaining proper control and discipline in the classroom, halls, and grounds. The teachers recognize that all disciplinary actions and methods invoked by them shall be reasonable and just and in accordance with established Board policy and in keeping with sound educational practices. The Board recognizes its responsibility to review and maintain supportive policies with respect to the maintenance of control and discipline in the classroom, halls, and grounds.
- D. A teacher may exclude a pupil from one class period when the grossness of the offense, the persistence of the misbehavior or the disruptive effect of the violation makes the continued presence of the student in the classroom intolerable. Said child shall be sent to the appropriate administrative office. In such cases, the teacher will furnish the principal, as promptly as his teaching obligations will allow but within the same school day, full particulars of the incident in writing.

E. (ONLINE LEARNING)

Another important type of teaching medium that when developed carefully to avoid creating problems instead of solving them is called online learning.

- 1. Online learning shall be defined as any class available through the program to enrolled students in which instruction of any kind is exchanged or provided electronically via the internet.
- 2. A teacher assigned a face-to-face course or other duties during the same period as proctoring an online class will be expected only to take attendance and provide as much classroom supervision as is possible for that proctor. Proctors will not be responsible for grades assigned by the online instruction.
- 3. Teachers will be paid at the rate of extra duty pay (extra instruction) Per District policy for required training outside the regular school day.

ARTICLE VII Vacancies and Promotions

- Whenever permanent vacancies in professional positions and other contractual assignments occur, or new positions are established during the school year, the Board will publish the vacancy and the new position along with the qualifications as determined by the Board.
 Appointments by the Board will be final. Vacancies in the Alternative High School are posted according to procedures in the Association contract.
- B. Any qualified teacher may apply for vacancies within the school system.
- C. All vacancies and newly established positions will be posted on the Web and emailed to all DEA members on the current seniority list.
 Any letter that a teacher files in accordance with Article XVII, H, will be considered as an application for the vacancy, which occurs during the summer months.

ARTICLE VIII <u>Transfers</u>

A. Any teacher who shall be transferred to a supervisory or executive position and shall later return to teacher status shall be entitled to retain such rights as he/she may have had under this Agreement including being placed on salary step in accordance with years of service.

ARTICLE IX

Illness or Disability

A. Each full time teacher shall be credited with a sick leave allowance of fourteen (14) days accumulative to the number of required teacher days in one school year. Sick leave shall be earned at the rate of one-tenth the yearly allowance for each month, or major fraction thereof, the teacher works, September through June. If a teacher's employment is terminated for any reason at any time during the school year, and he/she has used more sick leave than earned, his/her final pay will be adjusted accordingly by deducting from said pay the amount of unearned used sick leave previously credited to him/her, Sick leave shall be used for absences caused by illness or physical disability of teacher. The Board reserves the right to require medical verification that inability to work was due to illness after a time period of three consecutive days or more.

- B. Absence due to injury or illness arising out of or in the course of the teacher's employment for which worker's compensation award is given shall not be charged against the teacher's sick leave days, and the Board shall pay to such teacher the difference between his salary and the benefits received under the Michigan Worker's Compensation Act up to one school year from the first day of absence.
- C. Terminal Leave
 - Teachers retiring with at least 10 years of service in the Dundee Community Schools will
 receive \$50 per unused sick day up to a maximum amount of 180 sick days. The sick day payout
 amount will be deposited in to a District provided 403(b) account and made as a non-elective
 employer 403(b) contribution. The employee will have no option to receive cash. Should the amount
 contributed exceed IRS annual 415(c) limits, then the excess will be paid in cash with appropriate
 taxes applied.
 - 2. Should any teacher with 10 or more years of service in the Dundee Community Schools die while under contract, the district shall pay the estate of the deceased or a named beneficiary according to the above payout schedule.
- D. Teachers who anticipate being absent due to disability must notify the Superintendent of the anticipated disability as soon as feasible and, if possible, not later than Thirty (30) days prior to the projected onset of disability. Requirements of this provision apply regardless of whether the medical leave is paid or unpaid.

Teachers who anticipate disability and elect to use accumulated sick leave are subject to the following provisions:

- 1 Teachers who anticipate disability must notify the Superintendent of the anticipated disability not later than Thirty (30) days prior to the projected onset of disability.
- 2. The district reserves the right to request medical verification regarding the disability itself, the teacher's continued ability to perform his/her job responsibilities prior to the taking of the leave and the teacher's capacity to resume employment upon the conclusion of the leave. A second medical opinion may be required by the Board at Board expense from another physician selected by the teacher or his/her physician and approved by the Board. The Board shall also have the right to require medical verification if there is reasonable suspicion of abuse of sick leave, such as a pattern of absenteeism. The Board may also require medical verification of fitness for duty in appropriate circumstances, such as upon return from medical leave. Requirements of this provision apply regardless of whether the medical leave is paid or unpaid.
- 3. To receive sick leave payments the teacher must perform all duties until physically and/or mentally disabled and return to service as soon as physically able to perform all essential job functions, with reasonable accommodations as needed, as certified by medical opinion. The Board shall also have the right to require medical verification if there is reasonable suspicion of abuse of sick leave, such as a pattern of absenteeism. The Board may also require medical verification of fitness for duty in appropriate circumstances, such as upon return from medical leave. Requirements of this provision apply regardless of whether the medical leave is paid or unpaid.

- 4. For all sick leave days claimed the teacher must have a physician's certificate verifying physical and/or mental disability which prevents him/her from fulfilling his/her teaching responsibilities. The Board shall also have the right to require medical verification if there is reasonable suspicion of abuse of sick leave, such as a pattern of absenteeism. The Board may also require medical verification of fitness for duty in appropriate circumstances, such as upon return from medical leave. Requirements of this provision apply regardless of whether the medical leave is paid or unpaid.
- 5A. When teachers are absent, they shall provide in writing all lesson plans and other materials required by the principal for the duration of the absence in order to maintain curricular continuity through the substitute teacher. (The language in 5A. is intended to refer specifically to day-to-day absences as opposed to leaves of absences of any kind.)
- 5B. With regard to maternity leave, FMLA, or any other extended leave of absence, the affected teacher will supply lesson plans for a maximum of two (2) weeks at the beginning of his/her leave. After this two (2) week period, it will be the responsibility of the permanent substitute to maintain proper lesson plans.
- 6. A teacher who has exhausted his/her remaining sick days, under the provisions, shall be placed on an unpaid leave of absence with the provision that he/she return to service as soon as physically and/or mentally able to perform all essential job duties, with reasonable accommodations as needed, as certified by his/her physician, said leave not to exceed one calendar year.
- 7. If unusual and unanticipated complications occur concerning the health of the teacher (or the object child, in the event of disability attributable to maternity), the Board may grant an unpaid leave of absence to the teacher subject to the conditions specified in Article XI, said application to be made within fourteen (14) calendar days from the onset of the health complication.
- E. In order to encourage exemplary attendance, unnecessary utilization of sick/personal business/comp time leave, the Board shall do the following for those teachers who use up to two (2) days per semester sick/personal business/comp time leave, in the preceding school year:
 - 1. In the last paycheck preceding the winter break, the sum of \$100.00 will be added to the regular amount, and the exemplary regular attendance will be appropriately publicized.
 - 2. The teacher will be granted one (l) additional personal day for use at the teacher's discretion provided the building principal is notified at least two (2) days in advance of use. (Exceptions may be made by the building principal in cases of emergency). This day may be used to extend vacations or holiday periods, but not during parent/teacher conferences or on exam days. The day may accumulate from year to year up to a maximum of three days, or may be cashed in at the end of the school year at the teacher's daily rate of pay at the time when the teacher earned the day by not using sick leave. (The school year -preceding its award, i.e. if a teacher uses no sick leave in 2002-03, at the beginning of 2003-04, he/she is credited with an additional personal business day for use in 2003-04. The cash value of the day is the daily rate in 2002-03).

ARTICLE X Leaves of Absence

- A. Leaves of absence with pay chargeable against sick leave but not accumulative shall be granted for the following reasons:
 - Sick leave may be used in a school year for a critical illness in the teacher's immediate family or the teacher's spouse's immediate family. "Immediate family" shall include grandparents, parents, spouses, children, grandchildren, sisters, and brothers. It is expressly understood that this provision shall not apply to normal illness, medical appointments, and other illnesses, which are not of a critical nature. The determination of whether an absence is due to a critical illness shall rest with the building principal.
 - 2. Teachers shall be paid for appearing before administrative bodies or courts only if subpoenaed. However, a subpoenaed teacher shall not be paid to attend a criminal proceeding in which he or she is a party or to attend a civil proceeding or other action against the District in which the teacher is a party.
 - 3. Personal leave shall be allowed as follows:

Five (5) personal days/year, upon forty-eight (48) hours advance notice (except in case of an emergency upon approval of the principal), at the discretion of the teacher, excluding the first and last day of school, exam days, parent-teacher conference days, teacher in-service days and the day immediately before or after a holiday or vacation period.

Restriction can be made by the principal if more than three (3) teachers in a building or nine (9) teachers district-wide request personal days on the same day.

- B. Leaves of absence with pay not chargeable against sick leave shall be granted for the following reasons:
 - 1. Up to five (5) days of leave of absence with pay, not chargeable to sick leave, may be used in a school year for bereavement and attendance of funerals in the immediate family as defined in A. 1 above. One day of the five bereavement days may be used as a general bereavement day.
 - 2. Any association member called for jury duty shall be paid his/her regular full salary and the amount of money he/she shall receive for jury duty shall be deducted from his/her regular pay check. It is further understood that mileage pay shall be retained by the employee.
 - 3. Each teacher may be allowed on prior approval of building principal and/or Superintendent attendance at conferences, clinics, or approved visitations to other schools at Board expense. It is expressly understood that approval is for attendance at the discretion of the building principal and/or the Superintendent of Schools. In cases where the teacher elects but is not directed to attend, the expenses may be limited or denied.

C. Any teacher granted a leave of absence under any provision hereafter contained in this article shall notify the Superintendent in writing at least 60 days prior to the termination date of his/her intent to return or resign. Leaves of absence without pay not to exceed one year may be granted with prior Board approval for the following purpose:

I. Study related to the assignment of the teacher.

- 2. Study to meet eligibility requirements for a certificate other than the one held by the teacher.
- 3. Study, research, or special teaching assignment involving probable advantage to the school system.
- 4. Child care, Spousal Care, Parental Care

Medical leaves of absence may be used for the following reasons:

- 1. The birth of the employee's son or daughter, and to care for the newborn child;
- 2. The placement with the employee of a son or daughter for adoption or foster care, and to care for the newly placed child;
- 3. To care for the employee's spouse, son, daughter, or parent with a serious health condition; and,
- 4. Because of a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform one or more of the essential functions of his or her job.

In order for the above language to apply and the employee to use accumulated sick time, the individual in need of care must be under a doctor's supervision. In the event the employee does not have sufficient sick days, to cover all or any of the sick leave, their leave rights remain intact but such a leave would be without pay. Benefits, such as health insurance coverage, continue for the first twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave provided the employee qualifies under the provisions of the Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA). Health insurance benefits are maintained whenever an employee is on an approved paid leave of absence.

Upon return from approved leave, a teacher will be assigned to the same position, if possible, or to a position for which he/she is certified and qualified and at the same salary step as when the leave was taken. The year limitation may be extended at the discretion of the Board.

D. Unpaid Disability Leave.

Teachers who anticipate disability have the option of choosing unpaid leave of absence status or utilizing accumulated sick leave under the provisions of Article X.

Teachers who anticipate disability and elect to apply for unpaid sick leave are subject to the following provisions:

 In order to provide for continuity in the classroom between pupil and teacher, the teacher shall submit a written request for unpaid disability leave to the Board of Education at least 60 days prior to the expected onset of the disability so that necessary arrangements can be made to procure the teacher's replacement.

- 2. Requests for unpaid disability leave shall specify the beginning date of the leave, be accompanied by a physician's statement that there is no medical reason why the teacher cannot continue to perform services until the beginning date of the leave, and a statement by the administration that the date requested by the teacher will not unduly interrupt the pupil-teacher continuity. As nearly as possible, the beginning date of the leave of absence should conform to the beginning or ending of a marking period, semester, trimester or school year.
- 3. The district reserves the right to request medical verification regarding the disability itself and the teacher's continued ability to perform his/her essential job responsibilities, reasonable accommodations as needed, prior to the taking of the leave. A second medical opinion may be required by the Board, at Board expense, from another physician selected by the teacher or his/her physician and approved by the Board.
- 4. Once the beginning date has been approved by the Board, it shall not thereafter be changed, except in cases of emergency to be determined on an individual basis.
- 5. The teacher shall be eligible to return from unpaid leave upon filing a physician's statement that he/she is physically fit for full-time employment. The teacher may request a prospective termination date of the leave of absence at the time of request for the leave.
- 6. Unpaid leave will be granted without pay, without experience credit, without sick leave accumulation, and without other benefits. Upon return from unpaid leave, the teacher shall be restored to his/her same position on the salary schedule as when he/she left, and be entitled to other accrued benefits prior to said leave. Accrued experience credit in the amount of one-half year would be allowed upon the completion of one (l) semester/trimester.
- E. An adoption leave without pay not to exceed one year may be granted with prior Board approval, renewable for up to one year at the discretion of the Board. Upon return from the leave, a teacher shall be assigned to the same position if possible, or to a position for which he/she is certified and qualified and at the same salary step as when the leave was taken.
- F. Sick leave exceeding that for which sick leave days have been accumulated may be granted without pay upon written request for such leave when the contract teacher presents to the Board of Education written certification from a medical doctor that extended sick leave is necessary. Said leave may extend up to the balance of the school year, and may be renewable at the discretion of the Board. Upon return from leave, a teacher will be assigned to the same position, if possible, or to a position for which he/she is certified and qualified and at the same salary step as when the leave was taken. In order to qualify for return, the teacher must present himself/herself for duty at the beginning of the school attendance year occurring not more than one year from the granting of the leave. See Tenure Act, Article V., Sec. 2.
- G. The Board may grant, at its discretion, a leave of absence not to exceed one year without pay to teachers who are required by their position as members of any school, political, religious, or labor association, or are appointed to its staff, for the purpose of performing duties for said association. Upon return from such leave, a teacher will be assigned to the same position, if possible, or to a position for which he/she is certified and qualified and at the same salary step as when the leave was taken.

H. Military leave of absence shall be governed by applicable State and Federal law.

ARTICLE XI Protection of Teachers

- A. Teachers shall exercise care with respect to the safety of pupils and property, but shall not be individually liable, except in the case of negligence or neglect of duty.
- B. Any case of assault by a student upon a teacher shall be reported by the teacher or the Association to the Board within five (5) school days or the right to legal support by the Board shall be waived. After review of the report and any independent investigation it may make, the Board shall first determine whether the teacher has acted in good faith to carry out its policy and inform the teacher within five (5) school days of the reporting date of the incident. If the Board determines that the teacher has properly acted in good faith to carry out its policy, it shall provide an attorney at its own expense to discuss with the teacher his/her rights and obligations concerning the incident. This obligation shall not extend to trial preparation. The following letter of intent will serve to clarify the preceding sentence: While the Board's obligation to the teacher shall not include the necessity of trial preparation, it may in its own discretion carry the expense of a trial thereafter. It is the policy of the Board of Education to back teachers in student discipline matters where the teachers use reasonable judgment in handling behavior problems.
- C. A teacher involved in an assault as specified in B shall not be charged with time away from the job, which arose as a result of the assault, provided the Board determines the teacher has properly acted within the scope of its policy.
- D. Subject to the restrictions contained in MCLA 423.505, Section 5 of the Bullard-Plawecki Employee Right to Know Act, Michigan Public Act 397 of 1978 an employee shall have the right upon written request to review the contents of his/her personnel file (excluding initial references) and to have a representative of the Association accompany him/her in such review. Such reviews shall not exceed twice during any single calendar year, and shall not be held during the employee's regular duty hours unless expressly authorized by the building principal. An appointment shall be granted within two business days of initial notification to accommodate such a review.

Whenever new, substantive material including but not limited to student, parental, or school personnel complaints which are determined by the administration to be valid are placed in an employee's personnel file, the employee shall be provided an opportunity to review the material so included within two (2) school days of its inclusion. The employee may submit a written notation regarding any material, including complaints, (subject to the restrictions contained in MCLA 423.505, Section 5 of the Bullard-Plawecki Employee Right to Know Act, Michigan Public Act 397 of 1978) and the same shall be attached to the file copy of the material in question. After reviewing material to be placed in an employee's file, the affected employee shall sign said material and said signature shall be understood to indicate awareness of the material but in no instance shall said signature be interpreted to mean agreement with the content of said material. If the employee shall refuse to sign the material the administrator may send a copy of same to the designated representative of the Association who shall sign same and specifically acknowledge in writing that a copy was served on the employee and that the employee refused to sign same.

E. Board has a statutory obligation to comply with all requirements of the Open Meeting Act, Public Act 267 of 1976.

F. Academic freedom, subject to Board policy and accepted standards of professional responsibility, will be guaranteed to bargaining unit members, and no special limitations will be placed upon study, investigation, presentation and interpretation of facts and ideas.

ARTICLE XII Negotiation Procedures

- A. No later than March I prior to the expiration of this Agreement, the parties will likewise begin negotiations for a new agreement covering wages, hours, terms, and conditions of employment of teachers employed by the Board.
- B. In any negotiations described in this article, neither party shall have control over the selection of the negotiating or bargaining representatives of the other party and each party may select its representatives from within or outside the school district. It is recognized that no final agreement between the parties may be executed without ratification by a majority of the Board of Education and by a majority of the membership of the Association. After ratification by both parties, their representatives shall attach their signatures to the ratified agreement within twenty-four (24) hours.

There shall be no less than three (3) signed copies for the purpose of record; one retained by the Board, one by the Association, and one by the Superintendent.

- C. The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this agreement.
- D. Therefore, the Board and the Association, for the life of this Agreement, agree the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter covered in this Agreement. Matters of common concern may be subject to negotiations during the period of this Agreement upon request and mutual agreement of both parties.
- E. Any amendment or agreement supplemented hereto shall not be binding upon either party unless executed in writing and signed by both parties.

ARTICLE XIII

Grievance Procedure

A. A grievance shall be an alleged violation or misapplication of the expressed terms of this contract.

The following matters shall not be the basis of any grievance filed under the procedure outlined in this article:

- 1. The termination of services of or failure to re-employ any probationary teacher.
- 2. It is expressly understood that the grievance procedure shall not apply to those areas in which the Tenure Act prescribes a procedure or authorizes a remedy (discharge and/or demotion).
- 3. Any Dispute regarding the failure to employ or re-employ a teacher in an extra-duty/extra-pay position.
- B. The Association shall designate eight (8) representatives to handle grievances when requested by the grievant. The Board hereby designates the principal of each building to act as its representative at Level One as hereinafter described and the Superintendent or his designated representative to act at Level Two as hereinafter described.
- C. The term "days", as used herein, shall mean days in which school is in session.
- D. Written grievances as required herein shall contain the following:
 - 1. It shall be signed by the grievant or grievants and the Association.
 - 2. It shall contain a synopsis of the facts giving rise to the alleged violation.
 - 3. It shall cite the section or subsections of this contract or the written Board policy alleged to have been violated.
 - 4. It shall contain the date of the alleged violation.
 - 5. It shall specify the relief requested.

Any written grievance not substantially in accordance with the above requirements may be rejected as improper. Such a rejection shall not extend the limitations hereinafter set forth.

E. Level One — A teacher believing himself/herself wronged by an alleged violation of the express provisions of this contract or written Board policy shall (within Ten (10) days of its alleged occurrence) with an Association representative orally discuss the grievance with the building principal (or his designated representative) in an attempt to resolve same. If no resolution is obtained within five (5) days of the discussion, the teacher shall reduce the grievance to writing and resubmit same to the building principal within five (5) days of the discussion. The principal shall respond in writing within five (5) days of receiving the written grievance. Thereafter, if the resolution by the principal is unsatisfactory, the teacher shall proceed to Level Two within five (5) days of receipt of the principal's written response to the grievance. If the alleged occurrence

happens after the beginning of the school year, but prior to October 15, the teacher shall have fifteen (15) school days from the date in which they first became aware, to initiate the action.

Level Two - A copy of the written grievance shall be filed with the Superintendent or his designated agent as specified in Level One with the endorsement thereon of the approval or disapproval of the Association. Within five (5) days of receipt of the grievance, the Superintendent or his designated agent shall arrange a meeting with the grievant and the designated Association representative at the option of the grievant to discuss the grievance. Within five (5) days of the discussion, the Superintendent or his designated agent shall render his/her decision in writing, transmitting a copy of the same to the grievant, the Association secretary, the building principal in which the grievance arose, and place a copy of same in a permanent file in the Superintendent's office.

If no decision is rendered within five (5) days of the discussion, or the decision is unsatisfactory to the grievant and the Association, either side may request, in writing to the other, that the matter be submitted to non-binding mediation with the Michigan Employment Relations Commission. Such request for mediation must be made no more than ten (10) days after the delivery of the Level Two formal disposition. For mediation to occur, the mediation must be agreed to in writing by the other party not more than ten (10) days following receipt of the request. Mediation shall be considered Level Three.

Level Three - Mediation with the Board of Education

Level Four – Mediation with MERC or AAA, coordinated by the Board of Education who will hire a non-contracted, objective, mutually agreed upon, law firm, paid by the District.

Level Five - Individual teachers shall not have the right to process a grievance at Level Five.

- If the Association is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at mediation or if the
 parties do not agree to avail themselves of the services of a mediator, the Association may,
 within ten (I O) days after the request in writing the appointment of an arbitrator to hear the
 grievance. If the parties cannot agree upon an arbitrator, he/she shall be selected by the
 American Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules, except each party shall have the
 right to pre-emptorially strike not more than three (3) from the list of arbitrators.
- Neither party may raise a new defense or ground at Level Four not previously raised or disclosed at other written levels. Each party shall submit to the other party not less than three (3) days prior to the hearing a pre-hearing statement alleging facts, grounds, and defenses which will be proven at the hearing and hold a conference at that time in an attempt to settle the grievance.
- 3. In the event the grievance is not settled prior to the hearing, the grievance may be tried before the arbitrator whose decision shall be binding upon both parties who agree that a judgment thereon may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction;
- 4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the arbitrator shall not have the power to add or modify, alter or amend, or subtract from the terms of this agreement. He/she shall not hear any grievance previously barred from the scope of the grievance procedure, nor shall he/she question the

reasonableness of Board policy, nor annual assignments of extra duties for extra pay outlined in Schedule A.

If any grievance award shall include back pay, said award shall not extend more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of the Level One conference.

- 5. Grievance of similar nature may be consolidated to expedite the grievance process for all parties.
- 6. The costs of arbitration shall be bore equally by the parties except each party shall assume its own cost for representation.
- F. Should a teacher fail to institute or appeal a decision within the time limits specified, or leave the employ of the Board, all further proceedings on a previously instituted grievance (except a claim involving a remedy directly benefiting the grievant regardless of his employment) shall be barred.
- G. The Association shall have no right to initiate the grievance involving the right of a teacher or group of teachers without his/her or their express approval in writing thereon. The Association shall have the right to withhold its signature at any level thereby stopping the processing of the grievance thereafter. It is expressly understood that the Association shall have the right to be present at the adjustment of a grievance at any level. The Board or its designated representatives shall inform the Association Grievance Committee Chairman or his/her designated representative prior to the time of any adjustment.
- H. All preparation, filing, presentation, or consideration of grievances shall be held at times, other than when a teacher or a participating Association representative are to be at their assigned duty stations except upon mutual agreement.
 - 1. In the event a grievance is filed after May 5 of any year of this contract and strict adherence to the time limits may result in hardship to any party, the parties shall use their best efforts to process the grievance prior to the end of the school year or as soon thereafter as possible. After the end of the school year, "days when a school is in session" as referred to in Paragraph C of this article, shall be construed as "calendar days".

ARTICLE XIV Continuity of Operations

A. Both parties recognize the desirability of continuous and uninterrupted operation of the instructional program during the normal school year and the avoidance of disputes, which threaten to interfere with such operations. Since the parties are establishing a comprehensive grievance procedure under which unresolved disputes may be settled by an impartial third party, the parties have removed the basic cause of work interruptions during the period of this Agreement. The Association accordingly agrees that it will not, during the period of this Agreement, directly or indirectly, cause, authorize, or support nor will any of its members take part in any strike (i.e., the concerted failure to report for duty or willful absence of a teacher from his/her position or stoppage of work or abstinence, in whole or in part, from the EMI, faithful and proper performance of the teachers' duties of employment) for any purpose whatsoever. Further, the Association will make every effort to carry out the above.

ARTICLE XV Miscellaneous Provisions

- A. Teachers shall be informed of telephone numbers and personnel they shall call two (2) hours before the opening of the pupil's regular school day to report unavailability for work. They shall also inform the personnel to whom they report of a telephone number where they can be reached in the event it is necessary to contact them on matters pertaining to their assignment or other urgent school business. Once a teacher has reported his/her unavailability for work, it shall be the responsibility of the administration to arrange for a substitute teacher. In the event the teacher shall fail to notify the designated personnel as above stated at the time indicated or before, his/her pay shall be reduced proportionately from the next regular pay check except when the Superintendent shall specifically waive, in his sole discretion, the provisions of this paragraph.
- B. The Association shall have the right to review such statistical information of the Board of Education as is available to the residents of the school district as provided by law.
- C. The Association and its members shall have the same privilege to use school building facilities as any other group pursuant to written Board policy. A bulletin board shall be made available in each school building exclusively for teachers use. The Association shall have the right to use the teachers' mailboxes for distribution of Association materials.
- D. This agreement is subject in all respects to the laws of the State of Michigan with respect to the powers, rights, duties and obligations of the Board, the Association, and the employees in the bargaining unit, and in the event that any provision of this agreement shall at any time be held to be contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction from whose final judgment or decree no appeal has been taken within the time limit provided for doing so such provision shall be void and inoperative; however, all other provisions of this agreement shall continue in effect.
- E. The Board of Education reserves the right to require physical or psychiatric examination of any teacher when in their judgment such is necessary to determine ability of teacher to properly function as a teacher. Cost to be paid by the Board.
- F. Letter of Intent: Not to be issued before April l, except when this date shall fall during or after spring vacation, the letter of intent may be issued immediately preceding the spring vacation.
- G. On workdays immediately after the end or before the start of the school year, guidance counselors will be paid on a per diem basis, equal to their salary step for any days in excess of ten (10) days annually. Building principal and guidance counselors will agree on needed days

DUNDEE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS LETTER OF INTENT

I will be interested in a contract for	
I will not be interested in a contract for	
I am undecided	
I have my Master's Degree	
I expect to receive my Master's Degree this s	ummer
I have completed 30 hours beyond my Maste	r's Degree
I expect to complete 30 hours beyond my Master's Degree this summer	
I will not change degree status for the upcon	ning year
Current teaching certificate expires	
Subject and/or grade level	
First Choice	Subject Grade
Second Choice	Subject Grade

I have the education and/or experience qualifications for the following positions and desire to be considered for these positions if they are now open or will be open in the future.

Signature

Comments:

ARTICLE XVI Staffing

- **A.** New employees hired into the bargaining unit shall be considered as probationary employees as prescribed by the Michigan Teacher Tenure Act.
- B. Seniority within the school system shall be determined by years of continuous service. Effective with the 2011-12 contract, teacher seniority shall be accrued at a rate equal to the portion of the school day spent in the classroom. Preparatory time is considered to be time in the classroom for purposes of seniority. For example, a full-time teacher will earn 1-year seniority for each year of full-time teaching. A half-time teacher will earn one half year seniority, etc. No teacher seniority will be earned for hours spent outside of the classroom. The employees' date of hire will be used to determine the seniority placement.

Throughout this article, the terms "qualified" and "qualifications" when referring to a teacher shall mean highly qualified as defined by the ESSA and the Michigan Department of Education.

The word "certification" as used in this Article shall be defined as a certificate issued by the Michigan Department of Education.

In cases where teachers are hired in the same year, seniority will be granted on the basis of the date of hire, with the last person hired having the least seniority.

Leaves of absence granted pursuant to this contract shall not constitute an interruption in continuous service. Unpaid leaves of absence may not be used for the accumulation of seniority. Credit given for teaching experience in school districts other than the Dundee Community Schools shall not be considered for the purpose of accumulating seniority.

- C. Any teacher who is granted tenure shall have seniority from the last date of hire.
- D. The Board of Education shall prepare a seniority list and transmit a copy of same to the Association on or before the first day of October.
- E. It shall be the responsibility of each employee to promptly check the seniority list. If any employee or the Association does not agree with the employee's length of teaching experience, the Superintendent shall be notified, in writing, of the alleged error within ten (10) days of the list's posting. If no challenges are made within the ten (10) day period, the seniority list shall be deemed to be accurate and shall thereafter be frozen until reposted.

ARTICLE XVII School Calendar

- A. Each year of the contract the Board of Education Negotiating Team will submit to the Association Negotiating Team a calendar proposal for the ensuing year by the first Monday in April. Agreement on the calendar for the ensuing year will be reached by the first Monday in May of the preceding school year or the Board shall have the right to set the school calendar for the ensuing school year, which may not thereafter be challenged. In the event the Board of Education sets the calendar; the Board shall not alter the schedule identified in Section B below.
- B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board shall have the right to expand the school calendar in order to achieve the minimum days of student instruction as required by law for the full payment of State Aid. On days when school is closed due to inclement weather, fire, epidemics, or health conditions as defined by city, county or state health authorities, teachers need not report to work.

No Less than Per State Law hours/Days of instruction and Teacher Professional In-service Days.

** If the State eliminates or alters the requirements for make-ups days during the extension of the contract, Dundee Schools will meet all requirements of the State of Michigan.

- C. The Board has the right to schedule parent-teacher conferences and student exam days at its discretion as long as within the above limits.
- D. Snow day make-up schedule will be developed on a meet and confer basis (Superintendent and Association leadership).

Additional make-up days will be scheduled on consecutive weekdays following the last scheduled day of student attendance as needed to achieve the minimum days/hours of student instruction for full state aid reimbursement.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM la Salary Scale

Teachers shall be credited with all graduate hours earned prior to December 1, 2011, however, all graduate hours earned after December 1, 2011 must have prior approval of the Superintendent.

The following pay scale shall apply for the term of this contract: 2% increase for the 2018-19, 1.5% increase for the 2019-2020, and 1.0% increase for the 2020-2021 school year. The incentive pay shall be \$375 for an evaluation rating of effective or highly effective, to be paid by June 30 of that school year. Any Education Association Member achieving and maintaining the National Teacher Certification will be compensated an additional \$2,500 per year.

NEW		2018-2019		-	2019-2020		 * • · · · •	2020-2021	
1	\$37,947	\$40,593	\$41,403	\$38,516	\$41,202	S42,024	\$38,901	\$41,614	\$42,444
2	\$39,838	\$42,484	\$43,334	\$40,436	\$43,121	S43,984	\$40,840	\$43,552	\$44,424
3	\$41,726	\$44,935	\$45,836	\$42,352	\$45,609	\$46,523	\$42,776	\$46,065	\$46,989
4	\$43,801	\$47,581	\$48,531	\$44,458	\$48,295	\$49,259	\$44,902	\$48,778	\$49,751
5	\$45,973	\$49,948	\$50,949	\$46,663	\$50,698	\$51,713	\$ 47,130	\$51,205	\$52,230
6	\$48,245	\$52,492	\$53,542	\$48,969	\$53,280	\$54,345	\$49,458	\$53,812	\$54,888
7	\$50,701	\$55,508	\$56,619	\$51,462	\$56,341	\$57,468	\$51,976	\$56,904	\$58,043
8	\$53,248	\$58,531	\$59,700	\$54,047	\$59,409	\$60,595	\$54,587	\$ 60,003	\$61,201
9	\$55,696	\$61,651	\$62,884	\$56,532	\$62,576	\$63,827	 \$57,097	\$63,201	\$64,466
10	\$58,910	\$65,326	\$66,632	\$59,794	\$66,306	\$67,631	\$60,392	\$66,969	\$68,307
11	\$64,053	\$71,555	\$72,985	\$65,014	\$72,628	\$74,080	\$65,664	\$73,355	\$74,821

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 1b Calculating Faculty Pay for Those Who Teach More Than Full-Time

For bargaining unit members that teach more than full-time, the following distributions will serve as examples of schedules that constitute full-time:

Defined by each schools daily schedule.

Faculty members who exceed these full-time schedules with any combination will be paid 15% of their current salary for an extra period in the middle school and 20% of their current salary for an extra period in the high school.

If a teacher agrees to miss part of their lunch to teach an extra class, that time will be compensated with compensatory time or will be reimbursed for each hour accrued at their per diem rate.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM l c <u>Teaching Part-Time</u>

Any employee, who teaches part-time, will be compensated for each class taught. The pay will be based on the number of classes taught in a full day. If four classes are taught in a day and the part time employee teaches two, the part time employee will receive two fourths (fifty percent) of their step pay. Steps will advance yearly. The same ratio applies to the amount of all benefits paid for by the school and the fraction of a class period part-time teachers will have as a prep period each day. A teacher teaching one half schedule, will earn one half (fifty percent) of their step pay, fifty percent of sick time, have fifty percent of a class period for preparation, and have fifty percent of benefits or in lieu paid. Part-time teachers will attend parent-teacher conferences. Part-time teachers will attend staff meetings if the meeting is immediately preceding or following his/her schedule. Part-time teachers will attend professional development sessions when there are guest presenters. Exceptions to the conferences, meetings, and professional development can be made by the building principal. Longevity will be accrued according to continuous length of employment regardless of full-time or part-time status.

If a teacher is shared between the high school and middle school, they will be allowed 15 minutes travel time each trip. That time will be compensated with compensatory time or will be reimbursed for each hour accrued at their per diem rate.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 1d Insurance

A. The Board will pay for single, employee and spouse (or child), full family, or sponsored dependent health insurance for MESSA Choices II or equivalent for which employee is eligible, during the life of this agreement. Continuing from the change in 1998, the exclusion clause for abortion-related services is amended in the MESSA booklet.

2014-2018 MESSA Choices II or equivalent insurance with \$10/\$40 prescription card, and a \$500/\$1000 deductible in which \$200/400 to be reimbursed by the employer. (See Attached Plan descriptions for additional details under section Schedule A Item 8)The deductible shall be reimbursed to members using the Explanation of Benefits (EOB) with the medical information blocked out. The district shall effect the reimbursement within 60 days of submission.

The membership will pay a 20% pre-tax contribution, per the State of Michigan and to be deducted biweekly, toward their personal annual health care premiums. It is further understood by the district that if the State of Michigan mandates that a percentage of health insurance be paid by employees, that this contribution shall be credited toward the state mandated contribution requirements and not act as an additional contribution on top of the state mandated contribution requirement.

The Board will also provide a vision care program substantially equivalent to MESSA VSP-I for those taking the Health Care Benefits.

- B. The Board will pay for a \$20,000 term life insurance with AD&D with a carrier to be named by the Board.
- C. The Board will provide for a long-term disability insurance policy for each employee which shall contain at least the following the benefits:

After (90) consecutive calendar days of incapacity or the exhaustion of sick leave, whichever, is greater, the employee will receive up to 60% of his/her monthly contractual salary exclusive of bonuses and/or overtime up to a maximum of \$3,000 a month. The Board shall be free to determine the carrier so long as the above benefits are present.

- D. The Board will provide for a dental program for all employees, which shall be substantially equivalent to Delta Dental Plan C. Coverage will include up to full family including sponsored dependents.
- E. For those employees not electing to participate in health care coverage in paragraph A, the Board will provide both an additional \$40,000 term life as provided in paragraph B, a vision care program substantially equivalent to MESSA VSP-3 for the employee's family, an orthodontic rider (50/50/50 maximum \$1,000), and a \$500 per month annuity program with a carrier to be named by the Board or a monthly in lieu payment of \$500 Single /\$600 Double /\$750 Family paid directly to the teacher.
- F. The foregoing benefits will be prorated for part-time teachers under contract with the Board, provided the hours worked permit the teacher to be eligible for coverage under the policies. Proration will be based upon full-time teaching, thus a teacher who works only two-thirds (2/3) time will have two-thirds (2/3) of the premium paid by the Board and be required to pay one-third (1/3) of the premium through payroll deduction in order to receive the benefit.
- G. Each school year, the District will conduct a review of the Health Care Coverage where the President and Vice-President of the Dundee Education Association will meet with the Superintendent and the Chief Financial Officer to investigate the best plan options.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 1e Longevity Pay

Longevity pay in the amount of \$600 will be paid to each teacher beginning with the 12 year of continuous service with the Dundee Community Schools and continuing in like amounts every three years thereafter through the 27th year. A leave of absence granted by the Board shall not constitute and interruption of service, but the time on leave shall not be counted as service time. Longevity pay credit will be counted from the Alternative High School employees' date of hire.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 1f <u>Retirement</u>

The Board will pay all basic state retirement contributions as well as federal employer contributions on all salary and wages, which are included in the teachers' payroll.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM l g Salary Reduction Plan

The Board will implement an approved Section 125 Plan.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM l h Mileage

Pre-approved mileage will be reimbursed at the current rate set by the IRS each year in December. All receipts/requests must be submitted within five school days.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 2 Part A Extra Duty Assignment Pay

Extra duty assignments will be paid on the following percentage based on the MA scale for each year of experience in the same extra duty assignment. Credit will be capped at step # 7.

EXTRA DUTY ASSIGNMENT	RATE
Teachers – Extra Instructional Hours	\$35.00
Teachers – Service-related Hours	\$24.00
Chaperones for Students	\$30.00
Department and Grade Chairs	3%
Noon Supervisors	5%
Club Sponsors	2%
Yearbook Sponsor-High School	5%
Yearbook Sponsor – Elem and Middle School	3%
NHS/Sponsor	1%
Junior and Senior Class Advisor	2%
Freshman and Sophomore Class Advisor	1%
Student Council Advisor	2%
Band Director – MS and HS	13%
Elementary Choral Director	4%
MS/HS Choral Director	8%
Play Director (full production) 2 per year	3%
Debate Team Coach	2%
Art Coordinator (County Fair)	2%
School Improvement Chairperson	3%
Bus Duty	3%
Mentor	2%
Robotics	2%
Science Fair Coordinator	2%

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 2 Part B Extra Duty Coaching Assignment Pay

Extra duty coaching assignments will be paid on the following percentage based on the BA-scale for non-DEA Members and MA for DEA Members for each year of experience in the same extra duty assignment. Credit will be capped at step #7

Basketball, Varsity	12%
Football, Varsity	14%
Swimming, Varsity	12%
	12%
Volleyball, Varsity	12%
Wrestling, Varsity	11%
Baseball, Varsity	11%
Softball, Varsity	12%
Track, Varsity (Boys & Girls)	8%
Weight room/Conditioning Coach	9%
Cross Country, Varsity	9%
All Varsity Asst. J.V. and Freshman Coaches	6%
All Middle School Coaches	

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 3 Meetings during school hrs. /Noon Supervision/Supplementary Contract

No meetings during school hours, except the Student Council, unless approved by the administration. Noon Supervision - In the event there are no volunteer teachers, lay people will be hired if possible. Supplementary contracts will be issued for all extra services, which do not appear on the teacher's individual contract.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 3 PART B DCAT, ETTLC, Math MAC, Science MAC

A. DCAT (District Curriculum Advisory Team) - The District will continue with the DCAT committee. The DCAT committee will work on district-wide and building-wide curriculum and instruction initiatives that will foster greater communication and transparency so that curriculum materials and curriculum that is to be used by the teachers will have a formal approval process, evaluation process, and discussion process that allows for all parties to understand why, how, and when the district needs these items. The DCAT committee will include one (1) of each for DEA members for the following:

Elementary Math teacher; Middle School Math teacher; High School Math teacher; Elementary English Language Arts teacher; Middle School English Language Arts teacher; High School English Language Arts teacher; Elementary Science teacher; Middle School Science teacher; High School Science teacher; Elementary Social Studies teacher; Middle School Social Studies teacher; High School Social Studies teacher, CTE teacher; World Language teacher; District Art teacher; District Music teacher; District Physical Education teacher; Riverside Academy teacher; District Special Education teacher; and Future Farmers of America teacher.

Each DEA member selected will be asked to submit a letter of interest to the Office of the Superintendent. Team members will be selected based upon the following criteria: Good standing within the district teacher evaluation system (either a rating of Effective or Highly Effective); Positive years of service inside and outside of the district within the specific area of which they are applying (certification must relate to the position for which they are applying); The ability to have demonstrated some type of leadership capacity within their content area (i.e. attended recent professional development, led initiatives or participated within their content area, member of state or national organization within their respective area) or the interest to pursue leadership roles within their department or designated area; The number of years that the teacher has in the area for which they are qualified.

Each DEA member will be paid a fifty (\$50.00) stipend for each meeting that they attend.

B. ETTLC (Ed Tech Teacher Leader Corps) – The District will continue with the ETTLC committee. The ETTLC is a teacher leadership program, where a consultant from Discovery Education will be contracted with, where teachers are given opportunities to learn how to integrate educational technology into their pedagogy while maintaining their classroom and allowing other teachers the opportunity to learn from them. The ETTLC will include the following DEA members: Elementary Technology teacher; Middle School/High School Technology teacher; Four (4) teachers from each of the buildings, Elementary-Middle School-High School.

Each DEA member selected will be asked to submit a letter of interest to the Office of the Superintendent. Team members will be selected based on the following criteria: Good standing within the district teacher evaluation system (either a rating of Effective or Highly Effective); Positive years of service inside and outside of the district; The ability to have demonstrated some type of leadership capacity within their content area (i.e. attended recent professional development, led initiatives or participated within their content area, member of state or national organization within their respective area) or the interest to pursue leadership roles within their department or designated area; The number of years that the teacher has in the area for which they are qualified; Shown interest in educational technology and a desire to learn more about educational technology.

There will be a joint collaboration between the Executive Leadership of the DEA and the DCS Administration to select interested teachers to join this initiative.

There is no additional compensation for the ETTLC. The district will pursue SCHECHs credit for the ETTLC.

C. Math MAC – (Math Materials Adoption Committee) – The District will continue with Math MAC. The Math MAC will work to listen, reference, refine, and recommend materials that will be presented to the District Curriculum Advisory Team (DCAT), Instructional Leadership Team, and the Board of Education for approval, adoption, and ultimately purchase to be used by the teachers with students in the Dundee Community School System.

The Math MAC will include the following DEA members: Elementary Math teachers (one from each grade level); Middle School Math teachers (one from each grade level); High School Math teachers (one of each – Algebra, Geometry, Pre-Calc, and Calculus).

Each DEA member selected will be asked to submit a letter of interest to the Office of the Superintendent. Team members will be selected based on the following criteria: Good standing within the district teacher evaluation system (either a rating of Effective or Highly Effective); Positive years of service inside and outside of the district; The ability to have demonstrated some type of leadership capacity within their content area (i.e. attended recent professional development, led initiatives or participated within their content area, member of state or national organization within their respective area) or the interest to pursue leadership roles within their department or designated area.

Each DEA member will be paid the hourly rate of \$24.00 for the non-instructional rate for each meeting that they attend.

D. Science MAC – (Science Materials Adoption Committee) – The District will continue with Science MAC. The Science MAC will work to listen, reference, refine, and recommend materials that will be presented to the District Curriculum Advisory Team (DCAT), Instructional Leadership Team, and the Board of Education for approval, adoption, and ultimately purchase to be used by the teachers with students in the Dundee Community School System.

The Science MAC will include the following DEA members: Elementary Science teachers (one from each grade level); Middle School Science teachers (one from each grade level); High School Science teachers (one of each – Biology, Chemistry, and Physics).

Each DEA member selected will be asked to submit a letter of interest to the Office of the Superintendent. Team members will be selected based on the following criteria: Good standing within the district teacher evaluation system (either a rating of Effective or Highly Effective); Positive years of service inside and outside of the district; The ability to have demonstrated some type of leadership capacity within their content area (i.e. attended recent professional development, led initiatives or participated within their content area, member of state or national organization within their respective area) or the interest to pursue leadership roles within their department or designated area.

Each DEA member will be paid the hourly rate of \$24.00 for the non-instructional rate for each meeting that they attend.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 4 Compensation for teachers used substitutes

Teachers at the secondary levels shall be paid at the Teachers — Extra Instructional Hours rate as shown in Schedule A, Item 2, Extra Duty Assignment Schedule, for actual time assigned for each conference period they are used as substitute teachers. Contract elementary teachers, when used as substitute teachers for art, music, physical education, media center, and computers shall be paid at the same rate per hour as secondary teachers for actual time assigned.

All substitute pay in this paragraph shall be paid at the end of each semester/trimester.

When it is necessary for a staff member to substitute for a class, units will accumulate according to the time spent supervising the students.

Five (5) units will equal one (1) compensation day for the high school. This is based on a five (5) hour day.

Six (6) units will equal one (1) earned compensation day at the elementary and middle school

Any compensation days used after May 15th will require written permission from the superintendent.

Teachers shall have the option to take the compensation day the following year, or be reimbursed for his/her time. Teachers can break compensation days into half days, but no smaller increments. Reimbursement will be current "certified teachers" pay listed in Schedule A. Item 2.

Earned compensation days, under this provision, will be subject to the same restrictions identified in Article XI, Section A, Paragraph 2.

The maximum number of compensation days that an employee can carry forward will be restricted to no more than four in total (sum of days earned in Article X & XI). Compensation days earned beyond a total of four must be cashed in at the end of the school year.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 5 Credit for Prior Teaching Experience

Credit for prior teaching experience in the subject area up to and including eleven (1 l) years will be granted to those teachers newly employed.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 6 In-service Training Program

The Board of Education will pay \$ 100.00 per semester hour for credit earned after employment at the Dundee Community Schools. Payment of hours shall not exceed 9 hours per year and subject to the following:

- Reimbursement will be made in October following completion of work to a teacher employed at that date. Evidence of successful completion of hours qualifying under this reimbursement must be presented to the Superintendent on or before October 1st of the year of completion in order to receive reimbursement.
- 2. Reimbursement will be limited to courses, which pertain to the teaching assignment of the teacher.

Ŧ

3. Teachers returning from leave will be eligible for payment of semester hours while that teacher was on board approved leave. Payment of hours will not exceed 9 semester hours.

SCHEDULE A, ITEM 7 Dundee Community Schools Insurance Plan Description

Deductible Co-pays. and Dollar Maximums	In-Network	Out-of-Network	In-Network	Out-of-Network	
Deductible	\$200 Single / \$400 Family	\$400 Single / \$800 Family	\$500 Single 1 \$1 ,000 Family	\$1000 Single / \$2000 Family	
Copays • Fixed	\$10 Urgent care, \$25 Emergency Room	\$25 Emergency Room Visits	\$25 Office Visits, \$75 Urgent Care, \$100 Emergency Room	\$100 Emergency Room Visits	
• Percent	None	20% of approved amount for general services	20% for general services	40% of approved amount for general services	
Copay Dollar Maximums • Fixed (Total out of pocket Max.)	\$6,350 Single 1 \$12,700 Family (as Of 8/1/14)	\$6,350 Single 1 \$12,700 Family (as of 8/1/14)	\$6,350 Single 1 \$12,700 Family	\$6,350 Single 1 \$12,700 Family	
• Percent	N/A	\$2,000 Single / \$4,000 Family	\$1 ,000 Single / \$2,000 Family	9.000 Single 1 \$4,000 Family	
Dollar Maximums	Unlir	nited	Unlir	nited	
Preventive Services					
Dollar Maximum	Unlimited		Unlimited		
Health Maintenance Exam - includes chest X-ray, EKG, cholesterol screening, and other select lab procedures	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not Covered	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not Covered	
Gynecological Exam	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not Covered	Covered - 100%. one per calendar year	Not Covered	
Pap Smear Screening - laboratory and pathology services	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not Covered	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not Covered	
Well-Baby and Child Care	Covered -100% 6 visits per year, birth through 12 months 6 visits per year, 13 months through 23 months • 6 visits per year, 13 months through 23 months 2 visits per year, 36 months through 47 months 1 visit per year beyond 47 months	Not Covered	Covered -100% 6 visits per year, birth through 12 months 6 visits per year, 13 months through 23 months • 6 visits per year, 13 months through 23 months 2 visits per year, 36 months through 47 months 1 visit per year beyond 47 months	Not Covered	
Immunizations per the U.S Preventative Task Services	Covered -100%	Not Covered	Covered -100%	Not Covered	
Fecal Occult Blood Screening	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not Covered	Covered - 100%. one per calendar year	Not Covered	
Flexible Sigmoidoscopy Exam	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not Covered	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not Covered	
Prostate Specific Antigen (PSA) Screening	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not Covered	Covered - 100%, one per calendar year	Not Covered	

				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Mammography Screening	Covered -100%	Covered - 80% Of approved amount after deductible	Covered - 100%	Covered -60% Of approved amount after deductible	
	One per calendar yea	r, no age restrictions	One per calendar yea	ar, no age restrictions	
r illustrative purposes only: not intende for discussion purposes only. The officia		n the Distnct's Summary Plan De		eloped by ASR Health Benefits.	
Physician Office Services	In-Network	Out-of-Network	In-Network	Out-of-Network	
Office Visits	Covered - \$0 copay	Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible	Covered - \$25 copay	Covered - 60% Of approve amount after deductible	
Outpatient and Home Visits	Covered -100% after deductible	Covered - of approved amount after deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible	Covered - 60% of approved amount after deductible	
Office Consultations	Covered - \$0 copay	Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible	Covered - \$25 copay	Covered - 60% of approved amount after deductible	
mergency Medical Care				,	
Hospital Emergency Room - approved diagnosis	Covered - \$25 copay, waived if admitted	Covered - \$25 copay, waived if admitted	Covered - \$100 copay, waived i admitted	f Covered - \$100 copay, waive if admitted	
Urgent Care Center	Covered - \$10 copay	Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible	Covered - \$75 copay	Covered - 60% of approved amount after deductible	
Ambulance Services - medically necessary	Covered - 100% after deductible	Covered -100% after in- network deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible	Covered - 80% of approved amount after in-network deductible	
Diagnostic Services					
Laboratory and Pathology Tests	Covered -100% after deductible	Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible	Covered - 60% Of approved amount after deductible	
Diagnostic Tests and X-rays	Covered -100% after deductible	Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible	Covered - 60% of approved amount after deductible	
Therapeutic Radiology	Covered - 100% after deductible	Covered - 80% Of approved amount after deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible	Covered - 60% Of approved amount after deductible	
Aaternity Services Provided by a Physici	an			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Pre-Natal and Post-Natal Care	Covered - 100%	Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible	Covered -100%	Covered - 60% of approve amount after deductible	
Delivery and Nursery Care	Covered - 100% after deductible	Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible	Covered - 60% Of approved amount after deductible	
lospital Care					
Semi-Private Room. Inpatient Physician	Covered -100% after deductible	Covered - 80% Of approved amount after deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible	Covered -60% of approve amount after deductible	
Care, General Nursing Care, Hospital Services and Supplies	Unlimit	ed Days	Unlimited Days		
Inpatient Consultations	Covered -100% after deductible	Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible	Covered - 60% of approved amount after deductible	
Chemotherapy	Covered -100% after deductible	Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible	Covered - 60% Of approved amount after deductible	

Alternatives to Hospital Care

Alternatives to Hospital Care		······································							
Skilled Nursing Care Covere deduct		ed - 100% after tible	ared - 80% Of approved nount after deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible		Covered - 60% of approved amount after deductible			
		Up to 120 days per year			Up to 120 days per				
lospice Care Covered - 100% after deductible				rered - of approved ount after deductible		vered - 80% after luctible		Covered - 60% of approved amount after deductible	
Home Health Care	Covered - 100% after deductible			ered - 80% of approved mount after deductible		overed - 80% after eductible		Covered - Of approved amount after deductible	
Home Infusion Therapy	Covere	ed - 100% after tible		red - 80% Of approved ount after deductible	Covered - 80% after deductible		Covered -60% Of approved amount after deductible		
Surgical Services						l.			
Surgery, including all related				ered - 80% of approved Covere deductible deductible				vered - 60% Of approved mount after deductible	
Voluntary Sterilization		ered - 100% (women) after deductible (men)		red - 80% of approved ount after deductible	Covered - 100% (women) 80% after deductible (men)			red - 60% Of approved punt after deductible	
r illustrative purposes only: not intende for discussion purposes only. The offici Human Organ Transplants									
Liver, Heart, Lung, Pancreas, and H lung; must be pre-approved at design facilities	ated Co	vered - 100% after ductible		Covered - 80% of approve amount after deductible		overed - 80% after eductible		vered - 60% of approve mount after deductible	
Bone Marrow		overed -100% after eductible						Covered - 60% of approved amount after deductible	
Kidney, Cornea, and Skin		vered - 100% after ductible						Covered - 60% of approved amount after deductible	
Mental Health Care and Sub	stance .	Abuse Treatment							
Inpatient Mental Health Care & I Substance Abuse Treatment	npatient	Covered - 100% deductible	after	Covered - 80% of appr amount after deduct		Covered - 80% after deductible		Covered - 60% of approved amount after deductible	
		Unlimited days				Unlir	nited	days	
Outpatient Mental Health Care		Covered - SD coney		Covered - 80% of app amount after deduc		COVARAL S75 CODAV		Covered - 60% Of approved amount after deductible	
		Unlimited visits				Untir	visits		
Outpatient Substance Abuse Treatment		Covered - \$0 copay	copay Covered - 80% of app amount after deduc			Covered - \$25 copay		Covered - 60% Of approved amount after deductible	
Other Services Allergy Testing and Therapy		Covered -100%		Covered - 80% of appr	oved	[-	Covered - 60% of	
				amount after deduct	uctible Covered -100% app		approved amount afte deductible		
Chiropractic Spinal Manipulation				Covered - 80% of appr amount after deduct		Covered -100%		Covered - 60% Of approved amount afte deductible	
		Limited	to 38	visits per year		Limited to 38 visits per year			
Outpatient physical. speech and occupational therapy		Covered - 100% after deductible		Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible		Covered - 80% after deductible		Covered - 60% of approved amount afte deductible	
		Up to 60 combined visits per year			Up to 60 combine		visits per year		
Durable Medical Equipment		Covered -100% after deductible		Covered - 80% of approved amount after deductible		Covered - 80% after deductible		Covered - 60% Of approved amount afte deductible	
Prosthetic and Orthotic Appliances		Covered -100% after deductible		Covered - 80% of appr amount after deduct		Covered - 80% after deductible		Covered - 60% Of approved amount afte deductible	
Prescription Drugs - Retail		\$10 Generic 1 \$20 Bra	nd	Not Covered		\$10 Generic I \$40 Brand		Not Covered	
Prescription Drugs - Mail Order		\$20 Generic 1 \$40 Brand Not covered			\$20 Generic 1 \$80 Brand Not cove		Not covered		
Medical Case Management	edical Case Management			uded			Included		
For illustrative purposes only	not into	ndad to be a complete co	moarie	on of plans. At the reque	st of th	a client the shove evolution	ation	of honofite	

For illustrative purposes only; not intended to be a complete comparison of plans. At the request of the client, the above explanation of benefits was developed as a guide for discussion purposes only. The official description of benefits will be in the District's Summary Plan Descriptions, which would be developed by ASR Health Benefits.

Deductible and Coinsurance are tracked separate of each other. The deductible is applied first and once it is met, then the Coinsurance is applied until the Coinsurance Maximum is met. Once both the Deductible and Coinsurance are satisfied, the insurance will pay 100% of covered services for the remainder of the year. Flat dollar copays for office visits, urgent care visits, emergency room and prescription copays still apply.

Deductibles are \$500 per person, \$1,000 per family

Coinsurance is 20% with a maximum of \$1,000 per person, \$2,000 per family.

If someone were to have a surgery, and had not met any deductible or coinsurance, they would pay their \$500 deductible and then their

20% coinsurance up to a \$1,000 a total of \$1,500. After that, all services for that patient would be covered at 100% aside from flat copays.

DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be effective as July 1, 2018, and continue in effect for three years until 11:59 P.M. on the 30th day of June 2021. This Agreement shall not be extended orally and it is expressly understood that it shall expire on the date indicated.

BOARD OF EDUCATION

By: Gre eith, President

By:

Jacey Carner, Secretary

By:

9 diven Nam

Edward Manuszak, Superintendent

EDUCATION ASSOCIATION

700 By: -

Lee Haselschwerdt, President, Chief Negotiator

By: esley logoangeli, Secretary/Vice-President